

Latin American Legislation Online Resources



Argentina

Official Gazette

- <https://www.boletinoficial.gob.ar/>

Legislative Websites

- Cámara de Diputados: <http://www.hcdn.gov.ar>
- Chamber of Deputies (Cámara de Diputados de la Nación) at <http://www.diputados.gov.ar/>
- Senate (Senado de la Nación): <http://www.senado.gov.ar>
- <http://www.parlamentario.com/>

Agency Websites

- <http://www.energia.gov.ar/contenidos/verpagina.php?idpagina=3445>
- Secretary of the Environment and Sustainable Development (Secretaría de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sustentable or "SAyDS")
<http://www.ambiente.gov.ar/?aplicacion=Normativa&tiponorma=1&idseccion=0&idpais=10&provincia=0&formulario=grupo>
- <http://www.iram.org.ar/>
- <http://www.inti.gob.ar>

Trade Associations

- <http://www.cicomra.org.ar/>
- <http://www.cessi.org.ar/>

NGOs

- <http://www.greenpeace.org.ar>
- <http://www.farn.org.ar/>
- <http://www.ecofield.com.ar/noticias.htm>

Newspapers/Journals

- <http://www.lanacion.com.ar/>
- http://elpais.com/tag/medio_ambiente/a/

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- Gobierno de la Ciudad de Buenos Aires: <http://www.buenosaires.gob.ar>
- Legislatura de la Ciudad de Buenos Aires:
http://www.legislatura.gov.ar/?menu_id=12666
- Official Gazette: <http://boletinoficial.buenosaires.gov.ar/>



Bolivia

Legislative Websites

- Chamber of Senators (*Camara de Senadores*): <http://senado.gob.bo/>
- Chamber of Deputies (*Camara de Diputados*) at www.diputados.bo

Agency Websites

- Ministry of the Environment and Water (*Ministerio de Medio Ambiente y Agua*) at www.mmaya.gob.bo

Brazil

Official Gazette

- <http://portal.impresanacional.gov.br/>

Legislative Websites

- Chamber of Deputies (*Câmara dos Deputados*): <http://www2.camara.leg.br>
- Senate (*Senado Federal*): <http://www.senado.gov.br>

Agency Websites

- CONAMA: <http://www.mma.gov.br/port/conama/>
- Ministry of the Environment (*Ministério do Meio Ambiente*) (MMA): <http://www.mma.gov.br>
- Brazilian Environmental Institute (*Instituto Brasileiro de Meio Ambiente* or "IBAMA"): <http://www.ibama.gov.br>
- INMETRO: <http://www.inmetro.gov.br/>
- ABNT: <http://www.abnt.org.br/>

Trade Associations

- FIESP: <http://www.fiesp.com.br>
- ABINEE: <http://www.abinee.org.br/>
- ABIQUIM: <http://www.abiquim.org.br/>
- Confederação Nacional da Indústria: <http://www.cni.org.br/>

NGOs

- Portal do Meio Ambiente: www.portaldomeioambiente.org.br
- Planeta Verde: <http://www.planetaverde.org/home>
- Fundação Verde: <http://www.funverde.org.br/blog/>
- CMQV: <http://www.cmqv.org/website/>
- <http://www.inteligenciaambiental.com.br/>
- <http://www.abetre.org.br/biblioteca/legislacao/legislacao-de-referencia-em-residuos-solidos-e-areas-contaminadas>
- <http://www.ecoagencia.com.br/>

Newspapers/Journals

- <http://www.folha.uol.com.br>
- <http://www.envolverde.com.br/>



Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- Environmental Sanitation Agency (Environmental Enforcement Agency for São Paulo State) (*Companhia de Tecnologia de Saneamento Ambiental* or "CETESB"): <http://www.cetesb.sp.gov.br/noticias>
- São Paulo Secretaria do Meio Ambiente: www.ambiente.sp.gov.br/category/acontece/noticias/
- São Paulo Assembléia Legislativa: www.al.sp.gov.br
- São Paulo Prefeitura: <http://www.capital.sp.gov.br/>
- INEA (Rio de Janeiro): www.inea.rj.gov.br
- CONEMA (Rio de Janeiro): <http://www.rj.gov.br/web/sea/exibeconteudo?article-id=163845>
- ALERJ (Rio de Janeiro): www.alerj.rj.gov.br/
- Environmental Agency (for Rio de Janeiro State) (*Fundação Estadual de Engenharia do Meio Ambiente* or "FEEMA") at <http://www.rj.gov.br/web/sea/exibeconteudo?article-id=157524>
- FEAM (Minas Gerais): www.feam.br
- Agencia Minas: www.agenciaminas.mg.gov.br
- IBRAM (Distrito Federal): www.ibram.df.gov.br
- FEPAM (Rio Grande do Sul): www.fepam.rs.gov.br
- SEMA (Rio Grande do Sul): www.sema.rs.gov.br
- Rio Grande do Sul Legislative Assembly: <http://www.al.rs.gov.br/>
- IAP (Paraná): www.iap.pr.gov.br
- SEMA (Paraná): www.sema.pr.gov.br
- Paraná Portal do Meio Ambient: www.meioambiente.pr.gov.br
- Paraná Legislative Assembly: <http://www.alep.pr.gov.br>
- CRA (Bahia): <http://www.cra-ba.org.br/>
- CPRH (Pernambuco): www.cprh.pe.gov.br
- SEMACE (Ceará): www.semace.ce.gov.br
- SECIMA (Goiás): <http://www.secima.go.gov.br/>

Chile

Official Gazette

- <http://www.diariooficial.interior.gob.cl/>

Legislative Websites

- Chamber of Deputies (*Cámara de Diputados*): <http://www.camara.cl>
- Senate (*Senado*): <http://www.senado.cl>
- Biblioteca del Congreso Nacional de Chile: <http://www.bcn.cl>

Agency Websites

- Ministerio de Salud: <http://web.minsal.cl>
- Ministerio de Ambiente: www.mma.gob.cl/
- Superintendency of Electricity and Fuels: <http://www.sec.cl/>
- National Standards Institute: <http://www.inn.cl/>
- National Environmental Commission (*Comisión Nacional del Medio Ambiente* or "CONAMA") at <http://www.mma.gob.cl/chilecanada/1288/article-29825.html>

Latin American Legislation Online Resources



Trade Associations

- <http://www.sofofa.cl/>

NGOs

- Sustentable (Portal del Medio Ambiente): <http://www.sustentable.cl>
- <http://www.greenpeace.cl/>
- <http://www.terram.cl/>
- <http://www.chiledesarrollosustentable.cl/>

Newspapers/Journals

- www.lanacion.cl/
- <http://www.elmostrador.cl/claves/medioambiente/>

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- SEREMI, Region Metropolitana: <http://seremi13.redsalud.gob.cl/>

Colombia

Official Gazette

- <http://servoaspr.imprenta.gov.co/diariop/diario2.portal>

Legislative Websites

- Chamber of Representatives (Cámara de Representantes): <http://www.camara.gov.co/>
- Senate (Senado): <http://www.senado.gov.co>

Agency Websites

- Ministry of the Environment and Sustainable Development (*Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sostenible* or "Minambiente"): <http://www.minambiente.gov.co/>
- <http://www.minsalud.gov.co/Paginas/default.aspx>
- <https://www.minagricultura.gov.co/Paginas/inicio.aspx>
- <http://www.icontec.org/Paginas/Home.aspx>

Trade Associations

- Asociación Nacional de Industriales - ANDI: <http://www.andi.com.co>
- Acoplásticos: <http://www.acoplásticos.org/web/index.php>

NGOs

- Red de Desarrollo Sostenible: <https://www.rds.org.co/es/inicio>

Newspapers/Journals

- <http://www.eltiempo.com/>
- <http://www.elcolombiano.com/ambiente.asp>
- <http://www.elpais.com.co/elpais/temas/medio-ambiente>

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- Departamento Técnico del Medio Ambiente, Bogotá: <http://www.ambientebogota.gov.co>



Costa Rica

Official Gazette

- <https://www.imprentanacional.go.cr/gaceta/>

Legislative Websites

- National Assembly (*Asamblea Legislativa*) <http://www.asamblea.go.cr/>

Agency Websites

- Ministry of Environment and Energy (*Ministerio de Ambiente y Energía* or "MINAE"): <http://www.minae.go.cr>
- Ministerio de Salud: <http://www.ministeriodesalud.go.cr>
- INTECO: <http://inteco.or.cr/>

Trade Associations

- Cámara de Industrias de Costa Rica: <http://www.cicr.com/>

NGOs

- <http://www.acepesa.com/>
- Sistema de la Integración Centroamericana: <http://www.sica.int/>
- <http://www.cedarena.org/>

Newspapers/Journals

- <http://www.nacion.com/>
- <http://informa-tico.com/index.php>
- <http://www.elpais.cr/>

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- Proyecto de Mejoramiento Ambiental del Área Metropolitana de San José: <http://www.mejoramientoambiental.com>

Dominican Republic

Legislative Websites

- Senate (*Senado de la República Dominicana*) at <http://www.senado.gob.do/senado/>
- Chamber of Deputies (*Cámara de Diputados de la República Dominicana*) at http://www.camaradediputados.gob.do/app/app_2011/cd_frontpage.aspx

Agency Websites

- Ministry of the Environment and Natural Resources (*Ministerio de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales*) at <http://ambiente.gob.do/>

Ecuador

Official Gazette

- <https://www.registroficial.gob.ec/> [subscription required]

Latin American Legislation Online Resources



Legislative Websites

- Asamblea Nacional: <http://www.asambleanacional.gob.ec/>

Agency Websites

- Ministerio del Ambiente: www.ambiente.gob.ec/
- Ministerio de Agricultura, Ganadería, Acuacultura y Pesca: www.agricultura.gob.ec/
- Ministerio de Salud Pública: www.salud.gob.ec/
- Instituto Ecuatoriano de Normalización: www.normalizacion.gob.ec/

Trade Associations

- Cámara de Industrias y Producción: <http://www.cip.org.ec/es/>

NGOs

- <http://www.ecoticias.ec/>
- <http://www.derecho-ambiental.org/Derecho/Noticias.html>

Newspapers/Journals

- <http://www.elmercurio.com.ec/>

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- www.quitoambiente.gob.ec/

Mexico

Official Gazette

- <http://diariooficial.gob.mx/>

Legislative Websites

- Chamber of Deputies (Cámara de Diputados): <http://www.diputados.gob.mx/inicio.htm>
- Senate (Senado de la República): <http://www.senado.gob.mx>

Agency Websites

- Secretariat of the Environment and Natural Resources (Secretaría de Medio Ambiente y Recursos Naturales or "SEMARNAT"): www.semarnat.gob.mx
- <http://www.economia-noms.gob.mx/noms/inicio.do>
- Salud: <http://www.salud.gob.mx>
- COFEMER: <http://www.cofemer.gob.mx/>
- PROFEPA: www.profepe.gob.mx
- CONUEE: <http://www.conuee.gob.mx/>
- INECC: <http://www.inecc.gob.mx>

Trade Associations

- <http://www.canieti.org/Inicio.aspx>
- <http://www.concamin.mx/>

NGOs

- <http://www.partidoverde.org.mx/pvem/>
- PLANetaazul.com.mx/www/category/nacionales/
- <http://www.cemda.org.mx/>

Latin American Legislation Online Resources



Newspapers/Journals

- <http://www.eluniversal.com.mx/noticias.html>
- <http://www.oem.com.mx/laprensa/>

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- Secretaría del Medio Ambiente del Gobierno del Distrito Federal:
<http://www.sedema.cdmx.gob.mx/>

Paraguay

Legislative Websites

- Secretary of the Environment (*Secretaría del Ambiente*) at <http://www.seam.gov.py/>
- Honorable Chamber of Senators (*Honorable Camara de Senadores*) at <http://www.senado.gov.py/>
- Honorable Chamber of Deputies (*Honorable Camara de Diputados*) at <http://www.diputados.gov.py/ww2/>

Peru

Official Gazette

- www.elperuano.com.pe/

Legislative Websites

- Congress (*Congreso de la República*): www.congreso.gob.pe/

Agency Websites

- Ministerio del Ambiente: <http://www.minam.gob.pe/>
- Ministerio de Energía y Minas: www.minem.gob.pe/
- Ministerio de Agricultura y Riego: <http://www.minagri.gob.pe/portal/>
- INDECOPI: www.indecopi.gob.pe/
- National Environmental Council (*Consejo Nacional del Ambiente* or "CONAM") at <http://sinia.minam.gob.pe/fuente-informacion/consejo-nacional-ambiente-conam>
- General Environmental Health Agency (*Dirección General de Salud Ambiental* or "DIGESA") at <http://www.digesa.sld.pe/>

Trade Associations

- <http://www.sni.org.pe>
- <http://www.snmpe.org.pe>

NGOs

- <http://idmaperu.org/idma/>
- <http://fonamperu.org/web/>
- <http://www.dar.org.pe/>
- <http://www.pronaturaleza.org/>

Latin American Legislation Online Resources



Newspapers/Journals

- <http://noticias.terra.com.pe>
- <http://elcomercio.pe>

Key State/Provincial/Municipal Websites

- <http://www.munlima.gob.pe/>

Puerto Rico

Legislative Websites

- Senate (Senado) at <http://senado.pr.gov/Pages/default.aspx>
- Chamber of Representatives (Cámara de Representantes) at <http://www.tucamarapr.org/dnncamara/web/inicio.aspx>

Agency Websites

- Department of Natural and Environmental Resources (Departamento de Recursos Naturales y Ambientales) at <http://www.drna.gobierno.pr/>

Uruguay

Legislative Websites

- Chamber of Senators (Camara de Senadores) at <https://parlamento.gub.uy/camarasycomisiones/senadores>
- Chamber of Representatives (Camara de Representantes) at <https://parlamento.gub.uy/camarasycomisiones/representantes>

Agency Websites

- Ministry of Housing, Land, and Environment (Ministerio de Vivienda Ordenamiento Territorial y Medio Ambiente) at <http://www.mvotma.gub.uy/>

Venezuela

Legislative Websites

- National Assembly (Asamblea Nacional) at <http://www.asambleanacional.gob.ve/>

Agency Websites

- Ministry of the Environment (Ministerio del Poder Popular para el Ambiente) at <http://www.minamb.gob.ve/>

Beveridge & Diamond's [Latin American Practice](#) helps multinational clients navigate dynamic and unprecedented change in Latin American environmental law. We counsel clients from various industrial sectors on a wide range of issues arising under the laws of most Latin American countries. For more information, please contact [Maddie Kadas](#) or [Russell Fraker](#), or visit our [Latin American Environmental Regulation Resource Center](#).

Note: This is a list of key resources and links and sources are subject to frequent changes.